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The William J. Weir House is located on the north side of Avilton-Lonaconing Road about one third of a mile east of the 
intersection of Avilton Lonaconing Road and Swamp Road . The property consists of a house, tenant house, and small tool shed. 
There is also one collapsed unidentifiable outbuilding on the property. 

Main Dwelling (Circa 1880) 

G 

The Weir House was built with a T-plan that has been heavily modified with single-story shed additions on all sides. The bulk of 
the frame house sits atop a stone foundation , while several of the additions are supported by concrete block foundations. The side­
gabled structure also has a gable in the back of the "T" while all additions are covered by shed roofs. The main body of the house 
and the northwest and northeast additions are all covered with metal roofs. One quarter of the porch still stands, and is covered 
with asphalt shingles. A yellow-brick chimney protrudes through the side-gabled roof in the center of the house. Original lapped 
wood siding is visible in the lower right of the primary fai;:ade, however the majority of the house is covered with simulated brick 
asphalt siding. The southwest and northeast additions are both covered with asbestos siding. Windows throughout the house are of 
wood construction with a two-over-two pane arrangement. Overall the house is highly altered from its original form and many of 
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the original materials have been covered up or lost. 

Tenant House, c. 1920 
The tenant house associated with the Weir House is located approximately 200 feet southeast of the main house, also on A vilton­
Lonaconing Road. The tenant house is a frame structure sitting on a cut-stone foundation. The house has a front gable and is 
covered with a corrugated metal roof. The enclosed front porch is covered with a hipped roof and a standing-seam metal roof. A 
small addition on the southeast side of the house is covered with a shed roof with corrugated metal roofing. White-glazed bricks 
were used as piers for the front porch and were also used for the chimney located along the gable line in the center of the house. 
All of the windows in the house appear to be made of wood, with wood surrounds. They are in nine-over-nine configuration on the 
enclosed front porch, one-over-one on most of the rest of the structure, and a few stationary windows located in the sides of the 
enclosed front porch and in the southeast addition . A vertical board door leads to the basement. All siding on the building, other 
than the southeast addition, is lapped wood siding. Covering the addition is corrugated and flat Plexiglas. 

ToolShed, c. 1900 
The tool shed is located just northwest of the main house . It is a gable-roofed structure with board-and-batten siding. Tar-paper 
covers the roof and a plank door allows entrance on the southwest side. 

History and Significance 

The first Europeans began to arrive in the area around Avilton, Maryland in the mid-eighteenth century. There is little record of 
those who settled in the area first , as they did not file patents or commission surveys, but built cabins and cleared small portions of 
land . However, after the Revolutionary War development in the area greatly expanded. The forests that covered the mountains 
were slowly but surely cleared. Pine forests largely made up the land between Savage and Negro Mountains, with a few other 
varieties like spruce and hemlock intermixed (Brown 1896:54). These large wood-covered miles attracted many hunters to the 
area, including Meshach Browning, who wrote a book about the many years he spent living as a pioneer in the area around Avilton 
and directly west. Hunters like Browning who populated the area used the National Road, which was constructed through the area 
in the early nineteenth century, to get their hides and meats back to eastern markets (Browning 1942: 195). While the hunters 
settled early, it was not long before additional lots were readied for settlement. Many of the earliest lots in the area were surveyed 
for veterans of the Revolutionary War. Some of these lots went to men like Thomas Johnson, who eventually became Governor of 
Maryland. There were also land speculators who made their mark on the area, including men like Brooke Beall and William 
Deakins (Rowland 2009:39). 

The earliest land records of the area typically consist of people with large tracts ofland selling those tracts to other speculators. 
But, starting in the mid-l 800s that began to change, as smaller portions of land were sold off, and more and more farms were 
raised in the valleys between the mountains. As land was freshly cleared, many farmers from east of the Appalachians began to 
plant tobacco. However, they learned quickly that the soil was made too poor by tobacco farming in this area (Brown 1896:300). 
The settlement that would later become Avilton was originally known as "The McKenzie Settlement" for the many numbers of 
Scottish immigrants, particularly McKenzies, who settled there. The early farmers of this area grew primarily wheat, rye, oats and 
potatoes. A partial listing of the founding families of this area was included in Garrett County: A History of Maryland 's Tableland 
and includes: Garlitz, Blocher, Wilhelm, Broadwater, Miller, Crowe and Merrill among others. By 1885, the area was known as 
Avilton, and a post office was opened under that name (Schlosnagle 1978:65). 

In the second half of the nineteenth century, railroads made their way through Garrett County, connecting the area like never 
before. As the railroads arrived, the many pine forests that surrounded area farms were looked at with a new sense of their value. 
While they had been used as a source of building materials for years, the forests were now logged and the timber was shipped to 
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larger markets on the railroad. On Savage Mountain, it was the Juniata Lumber Company that took advantage of the fine timber of 
the area (Brown 1896:264,275). Increasingly, the agricultural area was dotted throughout by people who worked in the industry. 
As Jacob Brown described the area "she grew from a county of crude backwoods settlements and small self-sufficient farms to a 
county of coal towns, timber towns, resort towns, trade towns, and increasingly fertile fields and meadows (Brown 1896:304 ). " 
While the area was still largely rural , times were slowly changing. 

By the first half of the twentieth century, more and more people were working both on their farms and in various industries. By the 
1940 Census, many household heads were listed as working in mining or timbering, while it is also indicated that many continued 
to pursue agriculture (Ancestry.com). While they produced goods for local markets, the demands of an increasingly connected 
society drew more and more residents off their farms. The effects of the great depression were also seen in the 1940 Census of the 
area, with many people listed as road builders or general laborers who were employed in emergency government work 
(Ancestry.com). After World War II , some farms began to not be used for agriculture. This has led to the decline of some of the 
properties, and the destruction of others. Many families , descendants of the original settlers at McKenzie Settlement, continue to 
use the fields around Avilton to raise cows and some grains, continuing some of the traditions that were started so many years ago. 

The William J. Weir House is located on the east side of Avilton-Lonaconing Road, northwest of Lonaconing and southeast of 
Avilton . The area is predominantly densely wooded and rural. On the west side of Avilton-Lonaconing Road is an extant 
agricultural field . The property consists of a main dwelling, a tenant house southeast of the main dwelling along Avilton­
Lonaconing Road, a barn on the west side of A vilton-Lonaconing Road , and a shed and ruins of outbuildings immediately 
northwest of the main dwelling. 

On May 26, 1871 , James Weir purchased a large tract of land northeast of Lonaconing from Ezra Koon ts, and his wife Highley 
Koontz, for $2, 150.00 (Allegany County Deed Book 33 :559). This deed states that the parcel was located contiguous to the 
Lonaconing Iron Works. It is likely that James Weir constructed the circa-1880 dwelling and early outbuildings located on the 
William J. Weir House property. According to his obituary, James Weir was born March 15th, 1840 in Lanarkshire, Scotland. 
After being orphaned at the age of I 0, he and his brother William traveled to Maryland, where he worked in the coal mines. James 
Weir enlisted as a corporal in Company D of the 2nd Regiment of the Potomac Home Brigade of the Maryland Infantry during the 
Civil War. By the time he was mustered out, he was a sergeant (National Park Service 2007). After the war, James Weir moved his 
family to the community of Lonaconing, where he lived in town before buying a large tract of farmland (Allegany County Deed 
Book 33 :559). According to the County Tax Records for Allegany County in 1872, the value of James Weir' s real estate was 
$2000 (Allegany County Tax Records 1872). The 1880 United States Census lists James Weir as a 38-year-old farmer living with 
his wife 28-year-old wife, Ann (United States Census Bureau 1880). James and Ann had six children living with them in the house 
including three sons: Hugh, 13 years old and working as a farm laborer; James, 11 ; David, 9; and three daughters : Rebecca, 5; 
Rhoda, 3; and Evaline, I. 

The 1900 United States Census lists James Weir as a 60-year old farmer and head of a household of seven, including his wife, 
Annie, and five children: Rhoda, 23 ; Evelyne, 20; Agnes, 18; Thomas, 16; and Walter H., 12 (United States Census Bureau 1900). 
All three of James ' s daughters worked outside of the home as servants, while both of his sons attended school. James Weir died on 
February 13 , 1908 (Lonaconing Star 15 February 1908; Find a Grave 2011 ). On May I, 1908, Ann Weir and her two youngest 
sons Thomas and William H. conveyed 14.7 acres of James Weir's original property to her eldest son, Hugh Weir, and his wife 
Celia (Garrett County Deed Book 56:573). The 1910 United States Federal Census indicates that Ann Weir and her younger 
children lived nearby, and it is possible that she continued to reside on the property, either in the primary dwelling or in another 
residence on the property (United States Census Bureau 1910). 

According to the 1900 United States Federal Census, Hugh Weir was once employed as a coal miner (United States Census Bureau 
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1900). After purchasing the tract of land from his mother, however, Hugh Weir resided and farmed on the property with his wife, 
Celia, his daughter Ruby, and his son, William J. (United States Census Bureau 1910). By 1920, the couple has three children 
residing with them in the dwelling, and by 1930, Hugh and Celia Weir are living alone (United States Census Bureau 1920; 1930). 
Hugh Weir died on November 8, 1949 (Find a Grave 2012). In 1950, Celia conveyed the 14.7-acre property to her son William J. 
Weir and his wife Anna (Garrett County Deed Book 56:573). William, born in 1903, had been listed in the 1940 United States 
Federal Census as a laborer in "government work" and head of a household of four, including Anna Weir and their two sons 
William D, age 12, and Allan, age 1 (United States Census Bureau 1940). He had also worked as a mail carrier (Find a Grave 
2009) William J. Weir died in April 1967 (Social Security Administration 2011). Anna F. Weir conveyed the property to William 
Dale Weir for $10.00 on August 3, 1983 (Garrett County Deed Book 426 :518). William Dale Weir owned the property until July 
25 , 1996, when he conveyed the 14. 7 acres to Roy D. Weir and Brianne M. Weir as joint tenants for the consideration of "love and 
affection" and reserving the right of survivorship (Garrett County Deeds 685:827). Roy and Brianne Weir are the current owners 
of the property. 

NRHP Evaluation 

No information could be located that connects the William J. Weir House with significant events or themes in local, state, or 
national history. While the property was at one time associated with agricultural practices, it no longer functions agriculturally and 
is currently vacant. In addition, the extant structures, including the main dwelling, tenant house, and tool shed, do not present a 
cohesive reflection of any associated agricultural practices, largely due to the absence of contemporary agricultural structures 
and/or outbuildings. Therefore, this resource is recommended not eligible for NRHP listing under Criterion A. The property is 
associated with the Weir family, including Civil War veteran James Weir, Hugh Weir, and William J. Weir, for whom the property 
is named. Local historical and genealogical sources provide no further information related to the Weir family or any other 
individuals associated with the property, and there is no evidence that any individuals associated with the property were significant 
in local, state, or national history. As such, this resource is recommended not eligible for NRHP listing under Criterion B. The 
William J. Weir House stands as a common and heavily altered example of rural vernacular architecture in western Maryland. The 
modern additions to the dwelling and application of asphalt siding especially diminish the historical character and integrity of the 
resource, and it no longer maintains integrity of design, materials, workmanship, feeling, or association. The property also 
currently stands vacant and deteriorated. Therefore, the resource is recommended not eligible for NRHP listing under Criterion C. 
Eligibility under Criterion D cannot be determined as this resource has not undergone archaeological testing. 

References 
Allegany County Land Records. 
Various years . Recorder of Deeds. Retrieved from http://www.mdlandrec.net. 

Ancestry.com. 
2008. U.S. IRS Tax Assessment Lists, 1862-1918 [database on-line). Ancestry .com Operations, Inc ., Provo, UT. 

Brown, Jacob 
1896 Brown's Miscellaneous Writings Upon a Great Variety of Subjects. J. J. Miller: Cumberland, MD. 

Browning, Meshach 
1942 44 Years of the Life of a Hunter. Winston Printing Company: Winston-Salem, NC. 

Find a Grave. 
201 I . "James Weir." Find a Grave. Electronic document, http://www.findagrave.com/cgi-bin/fg.cgi?page=gr&Grid=66795822, 

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST REVIEW 

Eligibility recommended Eligibility not recommended 

Criteria: A B c D Considerations: A B c D E F G 

MHT Comments: 

Reviewer, Office of Preservation Services Date 

Reviewer, National Register Program Date 



NR-ELIGIBILITY REVIEW FORM 

G-I-C-026 William J. Wier House 

Page 5 

accessed November 25, 2013 . 
2012. "Hugh Weir." Find a Grave. Electronic document, http ://www.findagrave.com/cgi-bin/fg.cgi?page=gr&Grid=96913634, 
accessed December 4, 2013. 
2009. "William J. Weir." Find a Grave. Electronic document, http: //www.findagrave.com/cgi­
bin/fg.cgi?page=gr&Grid=43522753 , accessed December 4, 2013 . 

Garrett County Land Records 
Various years Recorder of Deeds. Retrieved from http://www.mdlandrec.net. 

H. , W. A. 
1935 Map of Military Lots, Tracts, Escheats, &c. in Garrett County, MD and Allegany County, MD. West of Cumberland: 
Prepared Under Act of 1874 Chapter 322 &c. 

Lonaconing Star. 
1908. "Answers Last Roll Call : James Weir, Sr." 15 February. Lonaconing, MD. 

National Park Service. 
2007. U.S . Civil War Soldiers, 1861-1865 [database online]. Available at Ancestry.com. 

Rowland, Tim 
2009 Maryland 's Appalachian Highlands . History Press: Charleston, SC. 

Social Security Administration. 
2011. U.S . Social Security Death Index, 1935-2011 [database on-line]. Available at Ancestry.com. 

Schlosnagle, Stephen and the Garrett County Bicentennial Committee 
1978 Garrett County: A History of Maryland ' s Tableland. McClain Printing Company: Parsons, WV. 

United States Census Bureau 
1860 1860 United States Federal Census. Available at Ancestry.com. 
1870 1870 United States Federal Census. Available at Ancestry .com. 
1880 1880 United States Federal Census. Available at Ancestry.com. 
1900 1900 United States Federal Census. Available at Ancestry.com. 
1910 1910 United States Federal Census. Available at Ancestry.com. 
1920 1920 United States Federal Census. Available at Ancestry.com. 
1930 1930 United States Federal Census. Available at Ancestry.com. 
1940 1940 United States Federal Census. Available at Ancestry.com. 

Western Maryland ' s Historical Library. 
2013. List of persons, copartnerships, and corporations assessed in the county tax for the year 1872. Electronic document, 
http ://www.whilbr.org/itemdetail.aspx?idEntry=2317, accessed November 25, 2013 . 

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST REVIEW 

Eligibility recommended Eligibility not recommended 

Criteria: A B c D Considerations: A B c D E F 

MHT Comments: 

Reviewer, Office of Preservation Services Date 

Reviewer, National Register Program Date 

G 



SOURCE: MICROSOFT CORPORATION, 2013. 

gai consultants 

G-l-C-026 
Resource Sketch Map 

William J. Weir House 
1419 Avilton-Lonaconing Road 

Lonaconing, Garrett County 



SOURCE: USGS 7.5 MINUTE BARTON 
QUADRANGLE MAP (1947, PHOTOREVISED 
1981). 

gai consultants 

William J. Weir House 
1419 Avilton-Lonaconing Road 

Lonaconing, Garrett County 



G-l-C-026 
William J. Weir House 
GAi Consultants , Inc. 
Previously Recorded Resources within Indirect APE - Fourmile Wind Energy Project 
Garrett County, Maryland 
Epson Premium Glossy Paper/Epson UltraChrome pigmented inks 

G-l-C-0026_2013-08-20_01 - Main dwelling, west and south elevations. facing southeast 

G-l-C-0026_2013-08-20_02 - Main dwelling, south elevation , facing northwest 

G-l-C-0026_2013-08-20_03 - Main dwelling, east elevation , facing west 

G-l-C-0026_2013-08-20_04 - Main dwelling, north elevation, facing west 

G-l-C-0026_2013-08-20_05 - Shed, facing north 

G-l-C-0026_2013-08-20_06 - Outbuilding ruins, facing northwest 

G-l-C-0026_2013-08-20_07 - Tenant house, west fac;:ade, facing southeast 

G-l-C-0026_2013-08-20_08 - Tenant house, south fac;:ade, facing north 

G-l-C-0026_2013-08-20_09 - Tenant house, east fac;:ade, facing west 

G-l-C-0026_2013-08-20_ 10 - Tenant house, north fac;:ade, facing west 
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William J. Wier House 
Lonaconing 
Private 

c. 1900 

The William J. Wier House is a frame, two-story gable roofed 
dwelling based on the T-plan with shed additions on the side elevations. 
It rests on a stone foundation and is covered with asphalt siding. 
The facade door features a frosted glass pane depicting Niagara Falls. 
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STATE 
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J:(FAIR 

CONDITION 

_DETERIORATED 
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_UNEXPOSED 

CHECK ONE 

_UNALTERED 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

The William J. Wier House is located on the northeast side of Aviliton­
Lonaconing Road approximately .5 mile southeast of Swanp Road. It is situated 
on the edge of the road with its facade pointing southwest. 

The house is a frame, two story, gable-roofed building on a coursed, 
roughly squared stone foundation. Its basic configuration is a T-plan with 
a three bay by one bay main block and a one bay by one bay rear extension. The 
facade has a synnnetrical, three bay, center door arrangement witn its second 
floor, center bay unfenestrated. A porch extends the full length of the facade. 
One story, shed-roofed additions obscure the northwest and southeast sides of 
the rear extension and the northwest endwall. 

Two over two sash windows light the building on all elevations. The 
facade door has a window on its upper half with a picture of Niagara Falls in 
frosted glass. This pane is framed by an egg and dart molding above and a 
dentil molding below. Five panels with a sunburst motif occupy the lower half 
of the door. 

Red, brick-patterned asphalt siding covers the exterior walls of the house 
and tarpaper covers the roof. A yellow brick stove chimney is postioned at the 
center of the ridgeline. The porch has a concrete block foundation and four 
turned posts with jigsawn brackets supporting its shed roof. 

Northwest of the house is a one story, frame, gable-roofed building. Its 
original use is unknown. The structure is one bay by three bays with a gable 
end facade (SE elevation). It rests on a dry laid foundation of uncoursed, 
roughly squared stone and has German siding on the exterior walls. Six over 
six sash windows with pedimented window heads light the northeast elevation. 
Two large, batten, double doors open on the southwest elevation. The facade 
door is four-panel with a white porcelain knob and a pedimented lintel. 

Four board and batten sheds are located northwest of the house. 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

This house is an example of a comm:m western Maryland type. 
Houses of this general configuration, based on the T-plan with 
shed additions on the side elevations, were constructed in Garrett 
Cotmty from the late nineteenth through the early twentieth centuries. 
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